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           THE COURT:  Well, I'm -- I'm inclined to allow them all 1 

  to come in subject to a -- an instruction to be agreed upon. 2 

           MR. BOWERS:  Thank you, your Honor. 
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              (Document displayed in open court.) 1 

  BY MR. BOWERS: 2 

  Q.  Does this look familiar to you?  Does this look like the 3 

  material we talked about that you relied on in filing the 2001 4 

  return? 5 

  A.  Which was the not liable -- 6 

  Q.  The not liable return, yes, sir.  And under the discussion 7 

  of income you had with Mr. Cohen about whether you were a 8 











 1072

  Schiff was a very angry person -- 1 

  Q.  Uh-huh. 2 

  A.  -- and he was upseed2545.58aovernment -- 3 

  Q.  He was or you were? 4 

  A.  Not me.  He was. 5 
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  Q.  Larry's not liable return? 1 

  A.  Yes, because I did put that in and I think they sent me 2 

  somethin' back sayin', you know... 
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  resulting in you having to pay any additional money on your 1 

  taxes; that that was all related to what you decided to do 2 

  through Irwin Schiff and Larry's not liable return; is that 3 

  right? 
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  A.  I'm sure there is. 1 

  Q.  Liquor taxes? 2 

  A.  Yes. 3 

  Q.  Gun taxes? 4 

  A.  Firearms, yes. 5 

  Q.  Alcohol taxes? 6 

  A.  Yes. 7 

  Q.  Gasoline taxes.  Presumably all of the taxing laws of the 8 

  United States. 9 

  A.  Not all of the taxing laws of the United States. 10 

  Q.  Is there -- well, is this also referred to as Title 20 -- 11 

  uh, Title 26?  It's also legally referred to as Title 26; is 
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  provisions of Title 26? 1 

  A.  You? 2 

  Q.  Yes. 3 
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  that misled him; this is the book that the Government said 1 

  caused people to erroneously -- I misled people with statements 2 

  from this book.  So I'm sure they'd wanna cross-examine me with 3 

  it. 4 

           But, more important, this shows my state of mind 5 

  eventually.  This is what I  5 

  it. 5 

  eventually. book, uh, This rj
-2.not paying inco-2.taxesi
rAnd2book that thTd
(5 )Tj
2.24 -8.273 Td
(  it. )Tj
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           MR. SCHIFF:  Well, the thing is, is that he went to a 1 

  one-day seminar. 2 

  BY MR. SCHIFF: 3 

  Q.  And I think you said you we want to a one-day seminar, not 4 

  to a two-day. 5 

  A.  A one-day seminar? 6 

  Q.  Okay.  Now, did -- 7 

  A.  Several. 8 

  Q.  -- this -- this is the agenda for a one-day seminar.  Most 9 

  of those are documents, but here's the actual documents.  I'm 10 

  only gonna use one or two anyway.  But -- 11 

  A.  Let me see the one or two that you're gonna use. 12 

           THE COURT:  If it's marked, you can.  Have you marked 13 

  it? 14 

           MR. SCHIFF:  Can you mark this as an exhibit, the next 15 

  exhibit? 16 

           THE COURT:  And show it to the Government. 17 

           MR. SCHIFF:  I don't have this as an exhibit. 18 

           THE COURT:  Well, then have it marked if you wish to -- 19 

           MR. SCHIFF:  I -- 20 

           THE COURT:  -- if you wish to use it, have it marked. 21 

           MR. SCHIFF:  I was trying to look for the actual 22 

  documents and I couldn't find them.  But I did find -- here, 23 

  mark this. 
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  Mr. Lewis didn't attend as a different product.  And I think 1 

  that -- 2 

           MR. SCHIFF:  All right. 3 

           THE COURT:  Well, the answer is he doesn't remember -- 4 

           MR. SCHIFF:  Okay. 5 

           THE COURT:  -- anything about the documents received -- 6 

           MR. SCHIFF:  Okay. 7 

           THE COURT:  -- he doesn't know -- 8 

           MR. SCHIFF:  Okay. 9 

           THE COURT:  -- whether the ones that are on this list 10 

  were passed out at his seminar.  So let's move on. 11 

  BY MR. SCHIFF: 12 

  Q.  Do you have those documents that were an exhibit -- do you 13 

  have the original sheet?  Do you have the original documents 14 

  that I gave you that you?  You said not all the documents. 15 

  A.  Oh, this one here? 16 

  Q.  Yeah. 17 

  A.  Yes, yeah.  Here you go. 18 

           THE COURT:  Hand them both back to Mr. Schiff. 19 

           THE WITNESS:  Here you go. 20 

  BY MR. SCHIFF: 21 

  Q.  Well, you say -- you never recall seeing this document where 22 

  I reported a news story in which IRS Commissioner Margaret 23 

  Miller Richardson -- 24 

           THE COURT:  No.  Hold on.25 
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  BY MR. SCHIFF: 1 

  Q.  You never -- 2 

           THE COURT:  No.  You're testifying now. 3 1 
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           And I also dedicated the book to Everett Lasher of 1 

  Seattle, Washington, who shot himself in Tax Court after being 
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  A.  Chapter 7 is -- 1 

  Q.  You said you Ya  Chapter 7 is -- 
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           THE COURT:  Let him -- he's still trying to answer -- 1 

           THE WITNESS:  Now -- 2 

           THE COURT:  -- the question. 3 

           THE WITNESS:  -- on Chapter 8 -- what page is Chapter 8 4 

  on, starts on? 5 

  BY MR. SCHIFF: 6 

  Q.  Yeah, Chapter 8 starts on 155.  YoStscitad-- thcap-:  -- th: 

capestion. 

           THE COURT:Well,-- the questige idid y Yoitad-- aton. 

T athe'- the questigt athe'pendryion. 

           THE WITNESS:Yes, Iow -- 

  BY MR. SCHIFF: 

  Q.2(5 )Tj
84124 -2.268 Td
Te3

  QA. -- oId y Y- oy Iow - y Y- o84124 -2.268 Td
Te4

  BQ  YoSts y Y- o84124 -2.268 Td
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  QA. -- oId y Yd-- aton. 

  BQ  Y- od-- ai. 

           TAndwhat pi the qtitle ofaton. capter ?

  QA. -"Hw -To Stop Paing tIncome Taxes."

  BQ  YOkay. athe'- the qcapter aton. showsYoitahowYoitacitastop Tj
-2.22.268 Td
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   paing tincome tax;pi then. correct?

  QA. -eah,. -IYd-- atoi tsevera trimes actually 

  BQ  YoStsd-- ai.tsevera trimes 

  QQQQQQQQQQI wantYoitagoto aage i167whaichpi tinclude ai athe'
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  Have you read this chapter?  Do you wanna read that paragraph -- 1 

  A.  The whole paragraph? 
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  A.  -- "for not" -- 1 

  Q.  "I wrote" -- in that book "I wrote" -- 2 

  A.  -- "filing)" -- huh? 3 

  Q.  -- "of my having" -- go ahead.  I wrote in that book -- 4 

  continue with that parentheses. 5 

  A.  Okay. 6 

           "And others for [sic] happening" -- "others from 7 

  happening to them.  So, I must again warn you regarding the use 8 

  of this information.  There is no question that it is" -- "that 9 

  it is all correct.  Paying and filing income tax[] are, by law, 10 

  voluntary.  The law, as you will now discover, also provides you 11 

  with a means of stopping the withholding of [the] tax" -- "that 12 

  tax; which, by any legitimate standard, you have a perfect right 13 

  to do.  But, by doing so, you run the risk of going to jail! 14 

  That's just how it is in Amerika [whatever]!"? 15 

  Q.  Yes.  With a "K."  So continue reading. 16 

  A.  Humm.  Okay.  Evidently, that's not America.  But... 17 
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  BY MR. SCHIFF: 1 

  Q.  Okay.  Okay.  Now, so -- and in -- in this book, the last 2 

  third of this book, I wrote while I was in jail, didn't I?  So, 3 

  um -- 4 

           THE COURT:  You're testifying now. 5 

           MR. SCHIFF:  I'm sorry. 6 

           THE COURT:  Strike. 7 

           MR. SCHIFF:  I'm sorry.  Strike that. 8 

  BY MR. SCHIFF: 9 

  Q.  Were you aware that a good portion of this book I wrote 10 

  while I was in jail and I wrote of my experiences in jail? 11 

  A.  I think you had talked about that on your radio show. 12 

  Q.  Was it in this book? 13 

  A.  I'm sure it is if you say it is. 14 

  Q.  Did this book show checks that Simon & Schuster turned over 15 

  to the IRS?  Here.  Turn to page 138. 16 

  A.  138? 17 

  Q.  Yeah.  I'm sorry.  One thirty -- yeah, 138 and 139. 18 

  A.  Okay.  What am I lookin' at? 19 

  Q.  Well, does that show that Simon & Schuster was sending the 20 

  IRS $98,000 that it owed me from the sale of my book How Anybody 21 

  Could Stop Paying Income Taxes?  Isn't that a letter from 22 

  Simon & Schuster to the IRS? 23 

  A.  I -- I -- I'm -- I'm not familiar with this.  It appears 24 

  that it is.25 



 1114

  Q.  Well, why don't you just read it.  It's only three lines. 1 

           THE COURT:  He's not familiar with it. 2 

           THE WITNESS:  I'm not familiar -- 3 

           MR. SCHIFF:  All right.  Forget it. 4 

           THE WITNESS:  -- with if this is -- 5 

           MR. SCHIFF:  All right. 6 

           THE WITNESS:  -- the actual -- 7 

           MR. SCHIFF:  It's not important. 8 

           THE WITNESS:  -- letter or it's -- 9 

           MR. SCHIFF:  Okay. 10 

           THE WITNESS:  -- it's a forgery -- 11 

           MR. SCHIFF:  Okay, okay. 12 

           THE WITNESS:  -- or what.  I mean, I can't forgery -- 







 1
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  A.  Yes. 1 
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  advice, is that correct, and you would stop listening to me? 1 

  A.  Right. 2 

  Q.  Because that's clear, isn't it? 3 

  A.  That's clear. 4 

  Q.  Okay.  So all this research available was available at 5 

  Freedom Books? 6 

  A.  Yes. 7 

  Q.  So nobody had to take my advice.  I just led them to the 8 

  law.  Before you -- before you read this book... 9 

           THE COURT:  Is there a question? 10 

  BY MR. SCHIFF: 11 

  Q.  Before you read this book -- yes, I'll just get -- before 12 

  you read this book, you never knew about of Section 6201 of the 13 

  Internal Revenue Code which says authority of the Secretary. 14 

  You didn't -- 15 

           THE COURT:  You can't testify. 16 

  BY MR. SCHIFF: 17 

  Q.  -- know about that statute, did you? 18 

           THE COURT:  You can't testify. 19 

           MR. SCHIFF:  No.  All right. 20 

           THE COURT:  You just did. 21 

  BY MR. SCHIFF: 22 

  Q.  You didn't know about that statute, did you? 23 

  A.  I did not know about that -- 24 

  Q.  You didn't know about Section 6203, did you?25 
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  A.  No, I don't -- 1 

  Q.  You didn't -- 2 

  A.  -- remember what it is. 3 

  Q.  -- know about Section 6303, did you? 4 

  A.  Before I -- no. 5 

  Q.  No.  You didn't know about any -- you didn't know about 6 

  Section 6204, did you? 7 

  A.  No. 8 

  Q.  You didn't know about Section 6212, did you? 9 

  A.  Can I see that? 10 

  Q.  No.  You -- well, you didn't -- you didn't know -- 11 

  A.  No, I didn't know about it. 12 

  Q.  -- about any of these sections.  Isn't that a fact? 13 

  A.  No, I didn't. 14 

  Q.  So my book called your attention to these statutes which you 15 

  never saw before. 16 

  A.  That's correct. 17 

  Q.  And then you had an opportunity to check out the validity of 18 

  what was in my book, didn't you? 19 

  A.  Yes. 20 

  Q.  Okay.  Now, in checking out the validity of my book -- on 21 

  June 5th, 2000, you signed under penalty of perjury an amended 22 

  return; is that correct? 23 

  A.  Yes, I think -- yes. 24 

  Q.  You signed an amended return.  And I don't know -- that was25 
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           You just told me to read number two.  You want me to -- 1 

  BY MR. SCHIFF: 2 

  Q.  Okay. 3 

  A.  -- read number three? 4 

  Q.  So you would -- is it your testimony that the -- that 5 

  despite all of the research equipment that you had available 6 

  that you would cite these Code sections and these statutes 7 

  without checking them to see if it really said what you said 8 

  they said? 9 

  A.  Well, I should have went to an attorney and -- and -- and 10 

  had him look at it.  But I -- 11 

  Q.  I didn't hear -- 12 

  A.  -- I did the research.  And -- and, um, it seemed like the, 13 

  uh -- what you had in your book I should copy it word for word 14 

  and it would work. 15 

  Q.  But is it your testimony that like a vantril- -- that you 16 

  just wrote that's -- which you signed under penalty of perjury 17 

  without checking what you were sending in?  Well, you have -- 18 

  you -- 19 

  A.  Well, I checked it -- 20 

  Q.  --      us to believe -- 21 

  A.  Yes. 22 

  Q.  -- that you just sent this in with all of your research 23 
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  BY MR. SCHIFF: 1 

  Q.  Okay.  I think we left off, in your amended return -- 2 

           THE COURT:  Hold on a minute. 3 

  BY MR. SCHIFF: 4 

  Q.  -- you -- 5 

           THE COURT:  Hold on a minute. 6 

           Ms. Clerk, did something happen with the microphones 7 

  while we were out?  I'm getting feedback on mine. 8 



 1129



 



 



 1132

  completely different.  This is Mr. Schiff's second book not 1 

  even -- not mentioned or charged in the Indictment.  And what 2 

  this defendant relied on, if he relied on this, is not what's 3 
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           THE COURT:  All right. 1 

           MR. SCHIFF:  Well -- 2 

           THE COURT:  So it won't be -- 3 



 



 





 1



 



 



 1
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  Q.  -- when you adopted my language though, however, you adopted 1 

  what that language said as -- 2 

  A.  Exactly. 3 
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  A.  That's what you sell.  And that's what I took it to mean 
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           THE COURT:  Well, what are you referring to? 1 

           MR. SCHIFF:  But this is a Affidavit of Material Facts. 2 

           THE WITNESS:  Can I see that? 3 



 



 



 1
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  bought a Series 6, i  bome with a tape and documents -- 1 

  A.  Okay. 2 

  Q.  -- is that right? 3 

  A.  Wait a minute. 4 

           Before Series 6 and what you're talkin' about, we need 5 

  to deal with this document, why I filled this document out and, 6 

  uh -- 7 

           THE COURT:  Well, hold on a minute. 8 

           MR. SCHIFF:  But -- 9 

           THE COURT:  Hold on.  There is no question pending.  He 10 

  didn't put a question to you. 11 

           THE WITNESS:  Okay. 12 

           THE COURT:  So i 's -- put it aside for now.  He may 13 

  come back to it. 14 

  BY MR. SCHIFF: 15 

  Q.  Mr. Lewis, when you got a tape -- 16 

           MR. SCHIFF:  Oh, incidentally, the Government -- the 17 

  Government received -- the Government received in the documents 18 

  from the people who were coming to the Grand Jury, uh, they show 19 

  here, um, Series 6, six tapes and supporting d -- the 
Hps43 He   dcumeies 6, i , when you got a tap2ou. 12 

 T Be   n Mrortiissu8 Tdeortr , when you got a tap2ay. 16 

  T41 -oicei4 -2.is , when you got a tap2w.  He may 13 
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  file an amended return? 1 

  A.  It may have been. 2 

  Q.  It may have. 3 
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                       VOIR DIRE EXAMINATION 1 

  BY MR. NEIMAN: 2 

  Q.  Mr. Lewis, prioau filing the amended64 turnwisthe 1040X'wis: 

frioyears '97, '98, '99 -- I believesthose aresthe years -- rio: 

the not liable64 turn, did you listenoau this -- did you listeno: 
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           MR. SCHIFF:  Well -- 
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           MR. SCHIFF:  That is correct. 1 

           THE COURT:  So how is it relevant if it was filed 2 

  afterwards? 3 

           MR. SCHIFF:  Because the document shows that as of that 4 

  date, which is seven or eight months after he met me, he left 5 

  the influence of my instruction.  He adopted philosophies that 6 

  have nowhere near what I, uh, teach.  So all of his testimony 7 

  that he relied on my teachings is refuted by that document. 8 

  It's refuted -- 9 

           THE COURT:  No, it isn't -- 10 

           MR. SCHIFF:  -- by that document. 
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  861 argument? 1 

           MR. NEIMAN:  I object to the document. 2 

           THE COURT:  Sustained. 3 

  BY MR. SCHIFF: 4 

  Q.  Doesn't it say that? 5 

           THE COURT:  Sustained. 6 

           Don't answer the question.  The objection is sustained. 7 

           MR. SCHIFF:  All right.  Can I say was he -- was he 8 

  aware that there was another theory called "861 argument"?  All 9 

  right. 10 

              (Discussion between Mr. Leventhal and 11 

              Mr. Schiff.) 12 

           THE COURT:  Not relevant. 13 

              (Discussion between Mr. Leventhal and 14 

              Mr. Schiff.) 15 

  BY MR. SCHIFF: 16 

  Q.  Okay.  Mr., uh, Lewis, did you ever hear of the 861 17 

  argument? 18 

  A.  No. 19 

  Q.  You never heard of the 861 argument? 20 

  A.  I don't -- I've never heard of the eight -- 21 

  Q.  You were unaware that that argument had2682n?bracllebyht -- 12 

           THE COURT:  Mrt -- 13 

           THWITNESSRT:W thatyperd ot -- 14 

           THE COURT:t -  Mr. Schi:t - 



 1170



 



 



 1173

  Q.  Okay.  Now, you testified, also, that you listened to my 1 

  show which was on every Thursday? 2 

  A.  Yes, I did.  I didn't listen to every one.  But I listened 3 

  to... 4 

  Q.  Were you aware that somebody had called my show and reported 5 

  filing an amended return and getting a refund?  Do you recallTj
2sling a.268or kn thabo dia.26how which was on e7ery Thursday? 3 

  to...   to... 0 Td
(5 )Tj
2s?k2.24 0 841, also, 12.24 -2841,3 Tdou recall .24 0 sul2slf 4 
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  people who wanted to file an amended return -- 1 

           THE COURT:  You're -- 2 

  BY MR. SCHIFF: 3 

  Q.  -- over my suggestion thTI wouldn't do it?F: 

           THE COURT:  You'rnow tggesfyingre -- 

         Y MR. SCHIFF Okay.-- 

           THE COURT:e -anded peating.-- 

         Y MR. SCHIFF Okay.- So:e -all right.-- 

           THE COURT:How much mou'rtime do you have?F: 

         Y MR. SCHIFF Okay.- I'll drop it.-- 

           THE COURT:How much mou'rtime?-- 

         Y MR. SCHIFF Okay.- I'm sorry.-- 

           THE COURT:How much mou'rtime?-- 

         Y MR. SCHIFF 15 minutgg.-- 

           THE COURT:All right.- Weou'rgoingrd ttake ourrnotio- 

recesg.-- 





 1



 



 1178

              (Defendant Schiff's Exhibit No. 2099, marked 
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  A.  Good. 1 

  Q.  The reason that this is important is that, uh, I think you 2
q
545.58 744.3 26.4 11d testifiedon thak yoreliedoupasome and my persuasive powersou 
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           MR. SCHIFF:  -- can I ask him who Joe Sweet is? 1 



 1
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  A.  Constructive -- Constructive Notice. 1 

  Q.  Could you just read the, um, second paragraph.  It's only 2 

  three lines. 3 

           MR. NEIMAN:  Objection, your Honor.  The documenews. 
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  the Grand Jury and the jury to believe that he only used -- 1 

           THE COURT:  I don't care what he led the Grand Jury to 



 1
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  BY MR. SCHIFF: 1 

  Q.  Now, do you recognize that document? 2 

           THE COURT:  Wait a minute.  We're going to see if it's 3 

  relevant. 4 

           THE WITNESS:  This document has nothing to do with 5 

  taxes.  This is something completely -- 6 

           THE COURT:  Send it up to me. 7 

              (Document handed to the Court.) 8 

           THE COURT:  What is your -- the Court rules the matter 9 

  inadmissible.  You can ask him a question if you wish. 10 

  BY MR. SCHIFF: 11 

  Q.  Well, who did you send that document to?  I couldn't figure 12 

  it out. 13 



 1197

  BY MR. SCHIFF: 1 

  Q.  What was the purpose of the document? 2 

           MR. NEIMAN:  Objection.  Relevance. 3 

           THE COURT:  It's -- it's irrelevant. 4 

           MR. SCHIFF:  Well -- 5 

           THE COURT:  Irrelevant. 6 

           MR. SCHIFF:  Well, suppose it was -- all right. 7 

           THE WITNESS:  This has nothing to do with it, your 8 

  Honor.  This has nothing to do with this.  It's completely 9 

  different. 10 

  BY MR. SCHIFF: 11 

  Q.  Well, would that document have anything to do with 12 

  protecting your assets from creditors? 13 

  A.  Has to do with copyrighting and protecting my assets from, 14 

  um, illegal, um, lawsuits, like renters. 15 

  Q.  Also the IRS who had a claim against you at that time? 16 

  A.  Could be.  But I don't -- I doubt it would... 17 

  Q.  In other words, that document could have been filed to 18 

  protect -- by your own research, protecting your assets from 19 

  what you perceived to be a potential IRS claim against you. 15claio the IRS who had a claim against you a ctvedresnm7nw2ut :  win Sch diit, yit wdon'. 11   beeI wumentold... 

  Q.Y youlready nw2racived th861as -- all right. 

  A.  Wh'ss, thme? 

  Q.SoeI o has nothing to do witu psuadcting yng tn fi a? 







 1200

  BY MR. SCHIFF: 1 

  Q.  Mr. Lewis, do you recognize that document? 2 

           THE COURT:  Just a minute.  I'm going to take a look 3 

  and see if it has any relevance. 4 

              (Document handed to the Court.) 5 

           THE COURT:  Your question. 6 

  BY MR. SCHIFF: 7 

  Q.  Well, in that document -- didn't you seek in that 8 

  document -- I don't have it in front of me -- to amend -- you 9 

  amended all the amended returns that you filed based upon my 10 

  information and su basoll r
(  informati-- to amethose my )Tj
-2.841 0 Td1(10 )Tj
2.841 -2.273 Td
ed retu?  So ws thisall tdateont ze that document? 

           THE COURTWhy- I donnd saskakeur question. 

  BY MR. SCHIFF: 

  Q.s thisall tdateont ze that document? 

  Q9-5ion. 

        .s thwasall tpurpose nt ze that document? 

  anomeone my 

  Q.oul and snt -- I don't hall td  docum,ano -- I donknowion. 

 defense exhibit?n.  



 1201

           THE WITNESS:  It's a combination of yours and others. 1 

  BY MR. SCHIFF: 2 

  Qe2dtayQe2Wouldf yo just4 rad this line, "So ionoth 6th dayn of 

 June"?( Just4 rad this paragraph.( Just4 rad starting thees. )Tj
-2.24 0 Td
42 )Tj
2.24 -2.268 Td
(           MR.NEIMANS: Yyou Honor, I wouldfobject tonoth  rading  )Tj
-2.24 0 Td
52 

  ofoth documents. 

           MR. SCHIFF: Yyou Honor, oth  rlevance  ofotis is --. 

 becausef yo --. yo talked about oth amended returns th filed  

 using my informnatioQe2dnfotis date, th amended allfotosef 

 amended returnsQe2ThaIt'soth points. 02 

           THECOURTS:   didn't talk about --. 12 

           MR. SCHIFF: Well, thees. 22 

           THECOURTS: Waits aminute.: Waits aminute.: 32 

           tis is oth secoandtimef yo havh put words ionoth mouth: 42 

  ofoth Cyout otat wheen't spoken byfoth Cyout; secoandtimefion 52 

 otis --.onfotis very subject.: 62 

          First4 yo said   identifiedfoth years otat th filed  72 

 amended returns, which   did not.: And now4 yo'rh saying I said  82 

 otat th used informnatio from10.98 rom10.98 rom10.98 rom10.98414d
(4 0 h filed  )Tj           THECOURTS:   didn't ees. 82            MRECOURTS: iyingSomebodyd
(82 iyin)Tj
28414 -2.268 2d
(           THst4 yo said   idennute.: WaitsAskTyjectques98 ro4 0 askTonetques98 ro414 0)Tj
28414 -2.268 2d
(           tis is oth  Td
in)Tj
28414 -2.268 2d
(  ofoth CyoutECOURTS:   didn't ees. )Tj
-2844 rad
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           MR. SCHIFF:  -- but those -- those are very relevant. 1 

  I won't go through anymore. 2 

           MR. NEIMAN:  These are the last two? 3 

           MR. SCHIFF:  Okay. 4 

           THj
2 URT:  Ms. Clerk. 5 

           MR. SCHIFF:  Your Honor, these are copies of -- of his 6 

  amended returns that he filed. 7 

           THj
2 URT:  Well, those are already in evidence. 8 

           MR. SCHIFF:  No, no.  No, no.  No, no.  These are -- 9 

  no, not these.  These are amended returns he filed 3-21-01.  And 10 

  these are too. 11 

              (Document handed to the Court.) 12 
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  BY MR. SCHIFF: 
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           THE COURT:  You're not gonna make a speech. 1 

           MR. SCHIFF:  -- should I try to put all these in?  I 2 

  mean, I don't want to put 'em all in. 3 

           THE COURT:  You just got through tellin' us that was 4 

  your last -- 5 

           MR. SCHIFF:  All right. 6 

           THE COURT:  -- I heard you talk to the prosecutor. 7 

           And, besides that, Mr. Schiff, you know the rules of 8 

  the Court. 9 

           MR. SCHIFF:  Okay. 10 

           THE COURT:  These exhibits should be marked -- 11 

           MR. SCHIFF:  All right.  So -- 12 

           THE COURT:  -- before we started trial. 13 

           MR. SCHIFF:  Okay. 14 

           THE COURT:  And I warned you that if you didn't get 15 

  them marked the penalty was they might not be admitted. 16 

           MR. SCHIFF:  All right. 17 

  BY MR. SCHIFF: 18 

  Q.  So in the final -- 19 
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  correct? 1 

  A.  Yes. 2 

  Q.  Okay.  Is -- so I -- I forgot completely about this.  But 3 

  I -- what I've done is I've taken care of the amended returns. 4 

           Um, so you claimed exempt on the W-4.  And did that 5 

  stop the withholding of taxes being taken from your pay? 6 

  A.  For a short time. 7 

  Q.  You also, I 83eve, testifiedid thao yofiledid theffidavihat 
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  BY MR. SCHIFF: 1 
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  A.  And I asked for your help -- 1 

  Q.  Isn't it a fact -- 2 

  A.  -- with regards to that and you gave it to me. 3 

  Q.  Isn't it a fact, Mr. Lewis -- 4 

           THE COURT:  Let him answer the questions. 5 

           MR. SCHIFF:  Okay. 6 

           THE COURT:  Stop interrupting him with questions. 7 

  BY MR. SCHIFF: 8 

  Q.  Isn't it a fact -- 9 

           THE COURT:  Let him finish. 10 

  BY MR. SCHIFF: 11 

  Q.  I'm sorry. 12 

           THE COURT:  Go ahead and give your answer. 13 

           THE WITNESS:  It depends on what it is. 14 

  BY MR. SCHIFF: 15 

  Q.  Pardon me? 16 

  A.  It depends on what you're asking me to do. 17 

  Q.  Well, in mm0heCHIFF: 1
(14 )TBtut
(1hich.24sugg.24Td
.84.268 Td
(  Q.  Wel8, in mm0heCHIFF: )Tj
-2.d
(3mighj
2llow.d
(3.84sons. )Tj7 )Thold7 )Tof taxes from3   Q.  Wel9epends on what you're aspa -2.268 Td
(        2SCHIFF: )Tj
-2.841 0 Td
(king  believTd
evTryth7 )Td
(3.8ldTj
2up3.84a certa7Tjpo )T-2.268 Td
(        2 sorry. )Tj
-2.8: 3.841  
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  BY MR. SCHIFF: 1 

  Q.  Now, at some point you said that ioFF: 
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           Well, who changed it? 1 

  A.  City of Las Vegas. 2 

  Q.  Who? 3 

  A.  City of Las Vegas. 4 

  Q.  The City of Las Vegas changed it? 5 

  A.  Yeah.  The Finance Department. 6 

           I mean, I brougaaefgaao you and you told I ll, WellIt. 

nengeao sue 'em;lItshould sue 'emah.And aefg'sl, fgaI didah.And . 
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           MR. SCHIFF:  No.  It's not -- all right.  I'm gonna get 1 

  off this witness. 2 

           THE COURT:  I'm being kind. 3 

           MR. SCHIFF:  All right. 4 

           MR. BOWERS:  I'm gonna join in th.inwionht. 

           THE COURT:Go aheaind. 

           MR. SCHIFF:  I'm gonna get -. 

           MRNEIMANFF:Your Honor,in e:Governmen It'concerned-. 
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  A.  Yes. 1 

  Q.  Oh, okay.  So, when you filed the affidavit, they, again, 2 

  began to withhold taxes from your pay? 3 

  A.  Yes. 4 

  Q.  Yes.  Okay. 5 

  A.  I don't remember what -- what the time line was.  I think 6 

  that was the next year, um, in March or April or somethin' like 7 

  that. 8 

           THE COURT:  Wait a minute.  The question was:  When you 9 
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           THE WITNESS:  Yes. 1 





 1
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           MR. NEIMAN:  Same objection, your Honor. 1 

           THE COURT:  Sustained. 2 

  BY MR. SCHIFF: 3 

  Q.  When you filed this and it stopped the withholding of taxes 4 

  from your pay, why -- why -- did it do -- what was [sic] the 5 

  affidavit consist of?  What does the affidavit consist of? 6 

  A.  It consists of, uh, language that, uh, basically showed your 7 

  employer that, um, you can file an exempt W-4 and the statute or 8 

  the section in the code that you were using. 9 

  Q.  Okay.  So, in other words, when you filed the regular W-4, 10 

  the statute doesn't appear on a regular W-4, the statute itself. 11 

  A.  No, it -- 12 

           MR. NEIMAN:  Objection to relevance, your Honor. 13 

  Again, Mr. Lewis has testified that he was following the advice 14 

  of Mr. Schiff with regards to this.  I... 15 

           THE COURT:  Sustained. 12 3ellMAN:  Object, did it do -E COURT:  S7s.  I...  ktestit do -E COURT:  S8s.  I... 
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  BY MR. SCHIFF: 1 

  Q.  When you -- 2 

           THE COURT:  Wait a minute. 3 

           You're only allowed to inquire into things that were 4 

  brought up on redirect. 5 

           MR. SCHIFF:  I know that.  He discussed -- 6 

           THE COURT:  The last 10 minutes. 7 

           MR. SCHIFF:  He discussed income. 8 

           THE COURT:  He discussed income as it relates to the 9 

  instructions -- 10 

           MR. SCHIFF:  Right.  And -- 11 

           THE COURT:  -- that are on -- 12 

           MR. SCHIFF:  And he said -- 13 

           THE COURT:  -- the exhibit, 2810. 14 

           MR. SCHIFF:  -- he referred on the 1040 booklet that 15 

  there was a provision for reporting wages. 16 

           THE COURT:  Right. 17 

           MR. SCHIFF:  Okay.  Good.  So he talked about that. 18 

           However, when Mr., um, Lewis sent in his W-4 -- I mean, 19 

  his -- he referred to a 1040.  He referred -- the 1040 was 20 

  fraudulently designed to mislead us into reporting sources of 2referred to a 10.841 -2.273 Td
(mquferred on the 1040 booklet that )Tj
-2.841 0 Td
r3 Td
hwvang s -2.taxable Td
(           8mng sourceus into reporting sources of )Td
r3 Td
hwvang s -2.taxean, -2.gt0uaxean, -2.gt77ces o.24 wrote2.841 d
(because2.8He ha
2.24do with  He  )Td
r3 Td
hwvang     MR. SCHIFF: gt0uaxeanunderstandwhrep2.8.24 state2.841 a
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  redirect. 1 

           MR. SCHIFF:  Okay.  No further questions. 2 

           THE COURT:  Anything further? 3 

           MR. NEIMAN:  Not from the United States, your Honor. 4 

           THE COURT:  Mr. Lewis -- 5 

           THE WITNESS:  Yes, sir. 6 

           THE COURT:  -- in your research of the Tax Code, did 7 

  you get to Section 1 of the Internal Revenue Code, "Tax Imposed, 8 

  Heads of household"? 9 

           THE WITNESS:  Yes, I did. 10 

           THE COURT:  "There is hereby imposed on the taxable 11 

  income of every" -- 12 

           MR. CRISTALLI:  Y-2.268 TdW6xabletosed on the taxable 1
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           THE COURT:  Why didn't you understand them? 1 
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  for the reasons already stated. 1 

           With respect to the Court's examination of the witness, 2 

  as you know, that is perfectly permissible under the rule of 3 

  criminal procedure for the Court to ask a witness questions. 4 

  And I don't have to allow counsel to -- to have to allow counsel 5 

  to, uh, reexamine the witness after I've asked the questions, 6 

  although you could have if -- if you had asked to do so. 7 

           With respect to the statement on the law, I've already 8 

  warned Mr. Schiff many, many times that if he continued on 9 

  with -- with incorrect statements of the law or trying to 10 

  buttress his position in his numerous attempts to give speeches 11 

  to the jury that I would instruct correctly on the law.  And 12 

  that's what has happened. 13 

           And the -- the Code does provide a definition.  It is 14 

  clear, as I stated, that wages are included in Income, just 15 

  looking at the form itself.  And, uh, and -- and we already 16 

  talked about giving an instruction on -- on this at the 17 

  beginning of the day, on -- on what the correct -- correct law 18 

  is.  So, uh, the -- the objection is -- is overruled. 19 

           MR. BOWERS:  Thank you, your Honor. 20 

           MR. CRISTALLI:  Thank you, your Honor. 21 

           MR. SCHIFF:  Can I make a comment on this? 22 

           Well, I've written books on this, your Honor.  And the 23 

  Court's have ruled that income is not defined in the Internal 24 

  Revenue Code.  I mean, the definition is not that clear cut.  So25 
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  like -- 1 

           THE COURT:  Go ahead. 2 
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  but may be preserved for appeal. 1 

           MR. BOWERS:  Well, and I don't -- I don't think these 2 

  implicate that.  But, just whatever documents might implicate 3 

  it, I -- I preserve that right. 4 

           Agreed, Government? 5 

           MR. IGNALL:  We agree to that,on't trI ar Wedmittrve? 

undeve tr Rules of Evidence, not necessarilyed fosupI prsione? 

purposesht. 
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  Q.  After Mr. Schiff was on national radio, for example, did you 1 

  notice an upsurge in orders? 2 

  A.  Oh, yeah, definitely. 3 

  Q.  What responsibility did you have for keeping track of the 4 

  orders that you were processing in Indiana? 5 

  A.  Well, when I -- when I -- when I hired on there was no 6 

  record keeping in Evansville.  None whatsoever.  And I -- I 7 

  wrote a computer program to keep track of every sale, every -- 8 

  every business transaction.  Everything.  Everything -- every 9 

  fax that cam
2.24 
ounomentired oe a computng.UeahIto pt I -- I 
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           MR. IGNALL:  -- and perhaps give him an opportunity to 1 

  look at them? 2 

  BY MR. IGNALL: 3 

  Q.  I'm gonna hand you what we've marka hTExhibit 89 Q.AhanisL: 
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  the faxes that ordered me to send the item out to the customer. 1 

  Q.  And these -- these are the faxes that you maintained? 2 

  A.  This -- this particular top item is -- was sold in 3 

  Las Vegas.  This is not something that I sent beca0Sbaof.95recogniz2.268 codeTd
It's "N" a4 0it als164ays "pick913up."s not something t5at I sent beca0Sbaof.95(3 )Tis -pick913upis pperson h3.9is p
-2.24 0   LaFreedom Books to send the item 6m is -- was sold in   Las pIndianaese are the faxes 7hat you maintained?  o
(1 )To send the item 9hat you maintained?  rough.268 o268r n- t bo
(  Q.  A -2.markth
o send 841e item o5hat you841ecustomer. )Tj0  Exhibit 91T Laany pose ?to send 841e item o6hat you841ecustld in cus.24 0,j
-2.Hrigu84l2hatmys.24( roug s p pIndisie m o69y pose ?to send 841e iteca799oveTj
-1799u And tg2441ecustld in )Tj
-22Yes, sie to send 841e item o08m is --kept2hats -- was sold in 
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  time. 1 

  BY MR. IGNALL: 2 

  Q.  When was that? 3 

           MR. SCHIFF:  Hearsay.  Objection.  That's hearsay. 4 

           MR. IGNALL:  Your Honor, it's a statement in 5 

  furtherance of the conspiracy.  I don't know want if we want to 6 

  have a sidebar about that. 7 

           THE COURT:  Pardon?  Do you need a sidebar? 8 

           MR. IGNALL:  I don't know if we want to have something 9 

  outside the hearing of the jurdnttme.ijre ma jurneecouplehing 

 jreight if we waaddreshen wa briefly wa ehing 

           THE CODoer, nybody wishe waaddresheit wa eed a sidebar? 

         CRISTR. IIGNAes,n?  :  Your Hwjreight Whewell. ehing 

           THE COVethewell. ehing 

        (Sve a sif tf.ijrthe Wheheld Whefollows:) ehing 

           MR. SCHCanNALexplaememy oay.  Objidebar? 

         CRISTR. IIGNWell,NALe soking oGovern stat Whegonnadebar? 

           THE COYeah,oGovern stat illegoefirst. ehing 

           MR. IGNAntmeis case,NALe sokingis is admissibuplehing Bar abouor,notutsidbasis upo.  hichewe' tointroducyouehing 



 



 





 



 









 









 1296

  BY MR. IGNALL: 1 

  Q.  No, no, no. 2 

           When did you have your first discussion with Mr. Schiff 3 

  about maintaining records in Indiana? 4i5o. -2.268Ihen didcame e yboard Td
(  Q.  No, no,5LL: )Tj
-2.24 0 Td
(1 )Tj
2Whaid you have y Td
(   --Td
(  Q.  No, no,6iff )Tj
-2.24 0 Td
(3 )o. -I couldn't --Td
(  Q.  No, no,7LL: )Tj
-2.24 0 Td
(1 )Tj
2I'm sorry. -I  Tdn't mean te9nNo, no,6iff )Tj
-2.24 0 T2.2,6iffj
-2.24 0 Td
(3 )o.o,  anw0 Td
(3 )o.o,  anw0 Td
(3 )o. (sisomebody(3 )Tj
ff )Tj
-2.24 0 T9o,7LL: 
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  BY MR. IGNALL: 1 

  Q.  Mr. Thomas, I've just handed you what we've marked as 2 

  Government Exhibit 92.  Could you take a look at that?  Do you 3 

  recognize this? 4 

  A.  That's -- that's -- that's my handwriting. 5 

  Q.  What -- what is Exhibit 92? 6 

  A.  I'm sorry? 7 

  Q.  What is that that you're holding? 8 

  A.  It's an envelope, Exhibit 92.  And inside I presume it's my 9 







 1300

  A.  I wrote a checfr T
q
545uld have T
me way of provin' how much 1  Amoneyq
5mad a t the end of the year. 2  AQ  IAll right  ILet me bafr upa csecond. 3  AAAAAAAAAAWhen you started545rkinga t Freedom Books, did you ever 4  Afill outa cForm W-4? 5  A.  I wfilled5outa-- w a ll filled5outaa form, and I believe I Tj
E-2.240 1d
( 6)Tj
E2.240-2.273Td
(  Afilled5outaa form sayin' 
54as exempt from paying federal taxes.)Tj
E-2.240 1d
( 7)Tj
E2.240-2.268Td
(  AQ  IWho did you give th t form to?)Tj
E-2.240 1d
( 8)Tj
E2.240-2.273Td
(  A.  I wsent it to the office5manager.)Tj
E-2.240 1d
( 9)Tj
E2.240-2.268Td
(  AQ  IWho -- who told you to fill outathe form like th t?)Tj
E-2.8410 1d
( 10)Tj
E2.8410-2.268Td
(  A.  ILinda Hicks.)Tj
E-2.8410 1d
( 11)Tj
E2.8410-2.273Td
(  AQ  IDid Freedom Books withhold any taxes from your payhecfr?)Tj
E-2.8410 1d
( 12)Tj
E2.8410-2.268Td
(  A.  IFreedom Books didn'ta-- didn'tawithhold any funds from m a t Tj
E-2.8410 1d
( 13)Tj
E2.8410-2.268Td
(  A ll.)Tj
E-2.8410 1d
( 14)Tj
E2.8410-2.273Td
(  AQ  IDid sd an w dvt5)Tj
E2nd sd afundsv5n-d
(  AQ  IDid Freedom Books withh 1d
( 13)Tj
E2.8410-2.26 end of payhecfr?)Tj
E-2.8416 1d
( 14)Tj
E2.8410-2.278Td
No, sir
(  A ll.)Tj
E-2.8417 1d
( 13)Tj
E2.8410-2.268Td
( ID chnrovwe'ou go ILet to:d
( yvwerd afunwritfromes fseld Freedom Books with8 1d
( 13)Tj
E2.8410-2.268 your payhecfr?)Tj
E-2.8419 1d
( 14)Tj
E2.8410-2.278Td
Scheccr T
q
545ua4 1cor AQ  scheccr T
q waye provin' h8Td
( yhecfr?)Tj
E-2.8420 1d
( 10)Tj
E2.8410-2.26 Amoneyq
5mad a t the end of the year.)Tj
E-2.8420 1d
( 11)Tj
E2.8410-2.268Td
Pwaye oldIWhmpayhecfr?)Tj
E-2.8420 1d
( 12)Tj
E2..240-2.273Td
('utaorrypayhecfr?)Tj
E-2.8420 1d
( 13)Tj
E2.8410-2.268Td
Pwaye oldIWhmpayhecfr? 14 Q  sent itQ  sent itbdvtkeepce5yhecfr?
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  that's your question. 1 

  Qo4tad he ever talk tos yo about whether  yo should?. 

 AQo4Non. 

  Qo4tad  yo have a discusstio with anyone else at Freedom Books. 

 about whether  yo should?. 

 AQo4tad I?. 

  Qo4Yesn. 

 AQo4My -- my employeesn. 

  Qo4But no one in Las Vegas?. 

 AQo4There was -- there was -- yes, there was a persio there who. 01 

 I -- that I told that I paad taxesn. 11 

  Qo4But dad anyone talk tos yo about whether  yo should or. 21 

 should not pay taxes?. 31 

 AQo4Non. 41 

  Qo4All rightQo4tad  yo ever ask anyone for.a Form W-2?. 51 

 AQo4I dadn. 61 

  Qo4Who.dad  yo ask for.that?. 71 

 AQo4I asked the office managern. 81 

  Qo4Anyone else?. 91 

 AQo4Non. 

 QQo4tad  yo ever get.a W-2?. 

 AQo4Non. 

  Qo4Let.me go back tosthe credio221 

  Q228ee backBE(12en2841w2en22.26goQQo4.me go back whder, how-2.738 Tdsthe credio221 )Tj.  QQ4Letm-2.y frnyo4Let.me go back ?sthe credio221 
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  A.  We -- we had a -- we had a credit card machine, a merchant's 1 

  account, with our bank.  And we -- every order that came in with 2 

  a credit card we ran it and if it was good it went right to our 3 

  checking account.  The funds went to the checking account. 4 

  Q.  When did you open that merchant account? 5 
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  A.  I'm sorry? 1 

  Q.  How do you know that you didn't get records of every sale 2 

  from Las Vegas? 3 

  A.  Well, there were time -- time lapses for months that -- that 4 

  there was no sales. 5 
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  Q.  Did you get records from Las Vegas? 1 

  A.  I got -- I did get records from Las Vegas, yes, sir. 2 

  Q.  How often did you ask for records from Las Vegas? 3 

  A.  It was an ongoing, head-butting procedure.  But I did -- I 4 

  did get records. 5 

  Q.  Who did you butt heads with? 6 

  A.  Everybody. 7 

  Q.  Do you remember anyone in particular? 8 

  A.  Um, office manager. 9 

  Q.  Is that Ms. Hicks?  Who was the office manager? 10 

  A.  Linda Hicks. 11 

  Q.  Anyone else you remember the name of? 12 

  A.  Uh, well, we went through so many people... 13 

  Q.  If you don't remember, that's fine.  But if there's anyone 14 

  you remember. 15 

  A.  I -- I -- I don't remember. 16 

  Q.  Anyone you remember being particularly cooperative when you 17 

  asked for records from Las Vegas? 18 

  A.  There was an individual who was very cooperative that worked 19 

  with me real well. 20 

  Q.  Who was that? 21 

  A.  Uh, her name was Michelle, and I'm not sure of her last 22 

  name. 23 

  Q.  Do you know if she was related to anyone at Freedom Books? 24 

  A.  It was Cindast 
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  Q.  And what did Mr. Schiff say? 1 

  A.  That she was his voice, just to do what she said. 2 





 1



 1
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  BY MR. IGNALL: 1 

  Q.  All right.  And, if I could turn your attention to, uh, the 2 

  page I have up here.  The second item under number 2, can you 3 

  read the address there? 4 

  A.  Uh, yes, sir.  That was also sent to Las Vegas to Freedom 5 

  Books. 6 

  Q.  How do you Q
10.98 0 o Freedom 
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           Given that you worked there you said from '95 to 2000, 1 

  2001, do... 2 

  A.  No.  But there'll be a record on my UPS log when it started. 3 

  Q.  When you started sending cash? 4 

  A.  When I started sending cash.  Right. 5 

  Q.  Would you like to take a look at that?  Would that help 6 

  refresh your recollection? 7 

  A.  Would it what? 8 

  Q.  Would that help your -- refresh your recollection as to when 9 

  you started sending cash? 10 

  A.  Well, sure.  It would -- 11 

  Q.  All right. 12 



 1
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  A.  But you'll have to remember that I was fired three times by 1 
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           THE WITNESS:  -- it's his office.  It's his money. 1 

  It's his business. 2 

  BY MR. IGNALL: 3 

  Q.  But did he ever tell you anything about his desire to send 4 

  cash? 5 

           MR. SCHIFF:  Object -- 6 

           THE COURT:  Foundation.  Foundation.  Time. 7 

           MR. SCHIFF:  Foundation? 8 

           THE COURT:  Approximate time.  He said it's -- says 9 

  when he -- 10 

           MR. SCHIFF:  When did this occur? 11 

  BY MR. IGNALL: 12 

  Q.  When did you have your first conversation with Mr. Schiff 13 

  about sending cash from the Indiana bank account back to 14 

  Las Vegas? 15 

  A.  I -- I don't know the date.  I'm sorry.  I don't know the 16 

  date. 17 

  Q.  Roughly when during your employment? 18 

  A.  Oh, '97/'98. 19 

  Q.  Okay.  And what was the first discussion you had with 20 

  Mr. Schiff about sending cash? 21 

  A.  The same reason I gave you, it's -- it's not -- if it's 22 

  lost... 23 

  Q.  Did he tell you why he wanted cash? 24 

17 
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  Q.  I just want -- 1 

  A.  -- it was -- 2 

  Q.  -- what Mr. Schiff -- 3 

  A.  -- for payroll. 4 

  Q.  I'm sorry? 5 

  A.  I was told it was for payroll, that they didn't pay in 6 

  check; they paid in cash. 7 

  Q.  Who told you that? 8 

  A.  The office manager. 9 

           MR. CRISTALLI:  Foundation. 10 

  BY MR. IGNALL: 11 

  Q.  What did -- 12 

           MR. CRISTALLI:  Time. 13 

  BY MR. IGNALL: 14 

  Q.  When you first had a conversation with Mr. Schiff about 15 

  paying cash, did he tell you why he wanted you to send cash? 16 

  A.  Well, there wouldn't -- there wouldn't be a bank record. 17 

  Q.  Who said that? 18 

  A.  Uh, the office manager and -- 19 

  Q.  I just want to know what Mr. Schiff told you. 20 

  A.  Well, she was speaking -- 21 

  Q.  I'm sorry. 22 

  A.  -- for Mr. Schiff. 23 

  Q.  At the moment just what Mr. Schiff told you directly. 24 

  A.  Well, he agreed with it.25 
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           MR. CRISTALLI:  Objection. 1 

  BY MR. IGNALL: 2 
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  before I ever came on board. 1 

  Q.  Did he tell you if he had actually sent money to this 2 

  P.I.L.L. account? 3 

  A.  Yeah.  He had his own -- he had his own account there. 4 

  Q.  Did he tell you why he sent money to that account? 5 

  A.  Not -- not -- not exactly, no.  I mean, he never sat down 6 

  and told me verbatim -- 7 

  Q.  Did he tell -- 8 

  A.  -- why he did anything. 9 
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  A.  Uh, I remember that he told me that if they join a certain 1 

  percentage of the application fee would go to -- go to him. 2 

  Q.  Did you ever have any discussion with Mr. Schiff about how 3 

  he got money back from this P.I.L.L. account? 4 

  A.  They -- they issued a -- a debit -- a Visa card, a debit 5 

  card -- 6 

  Q.  Okay.  Did he discuss -- 7 

  A.  -- for their accountholders. 8 

  Q.  -- how they used that? 9 

  A.  But I don't know how -- I don't know what the minimum 10 

  balance would be. 11 

  Q.  But did he tell you he could use that debit card here in the 12 

  U.S.? 13 

  A.  Yes, yes. 14 

  Q.  Did you have a discussion with Mr. Schiff about what records 15 

  P.I.L.L. maintained or where? 16 

  A.  Uh, some people -- not Mr. Schiff but people in the office 17 

  when these -- when these applications -- some people joined paid 18 

1(2 )Tj
2.24 -No,, s,, s
(  A.  Yes, yes. )2j
-2.841 0 Td
(14 )Tj
2.88888888882.273 Td
(  Q. se 3 Tds peoapplmonng7with M  per268 Td Td
y.e88888.273in )Tj
Unitn tStatcards, yes. 14 
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  kept? 1 

  A.  I had discussions not with Mr. Schiff but with other 2 

  personnel. 3 

  Q.  With whom? 4 

  A.  With the office manager. 5 

  Q.  And when did you have this conversation with the office 6 

  manager? 7 

  A.  Early on in my -- '90- -- '95 -- 1995, I presume. 8 

  Q.  And did she talk to you about Mr. Schiff's account in 9 

  particular? 10 

  A.  No. 11 

  Q.  Just P.I.L.L. in general? 12 

  A.  Right. 13 

           THE COURT:  It's time for us to take our break.  Are 14 

  you pretty close to a good time for you to break or do you want 15 

  to ask a few more questions? 16 

           MR. IGNALL:  It's actually a pretty good time, your 17 

  Honor. 18 

           THE COURT:  All right. 19 

           We'll take a recess.  We do have several matters on 20 

  calendar tomorrow morning at 9:00 o'clock.  So we'll resume at 21 

  9:30. 22 

           Jury's instructed not to discuss the case among 23 

  themselves or with others, to view any media accounts, or to 24 

  allow themselves to be influenced in any way regarding this and25 
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  to not form any conclusions until the matter is submitted to you 1 
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